City of Lake Forest Park - Planning Commission
Regular Meeting Notes: April 10, 2018
17425 Ballinger Way NE—Forest Room

Planning Commissioners present: Chair Jon Lebo; Richard Saunders; TJ Fudge; Ira Gross; Rachael Katz; Mark Withers; Steve Morris
Staff and others present: Semra Riddle, City Councilmember; Steve Bennett, Planning Director; Ande Flower, Principal Planner; Lauren Hoerr, Assistant Planner; Sue Costa Paschke, ELM Consultants
LFP Residents present: Mike Dee, Jan Barcello, Tracy Furutani, Candy Richards, Gary Richards, Nancy Bradhurn Johnson, Brian Johnson, Thomas Hoffman, Levi Jette, Melissa Cranmer, Ned Lawson, Kim Drews, Madlyn Runburg, Richard Larson, Suzanne Withers, Darin Seader, Max Beuter
Planning Commissioners absent: Vice-Chair Joel Paisner

Call to order: 7:03 PM

Approval of Meeting Agenda: 
Cmr. Gross moved to approve the meeting agenda as written. Cmr. Saunders seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

Note that a motion was made to amend the agenda later on in the meeting (see page 2, lines 44-46).

Approval of Meeting Minutes:
March 13th
[bookmark: _GoBack]Cmr. Saunders asked that Page 2, line 29 “Councilmember Riddle” be changed to reflect that it was Chair Lebo that provided the option. Cmr. Katz moved to approve the minutes as amended. Cmr. Saunders seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

Next meeting: 
The next regular meeting occurs on May 8, 2018. The Planning Commission decided later in the meeting (see page 3, lines 35-38) that special meetings will also be held April 24, 2018 and potentially May 15, 2018.

Public Comment
Tom Hoffman
Mr. Hoffman lives on 36th Ave. NE and has lived in the city for 10 years. Regarding Conservation Cluster Housing (CCH), Mr. Hoffman asked if the City has data on the number of LFP residents that are fully aware of the CCH provisions and how many residents approve of CCH, by either email or phone call survey. Mr. Hoffman stated his concerns about CCH and said there are many concerns in the community. 

Mike Dee
Mr. Dee lives on NE 171st Street. Mr. Dee suggested adding a second public comment period at the end of the meeting after CCH has been discussed by the Commission. Mr. Dee noted several issues with posting agendas, minutes, and supplementary documents. Mr. Dee stated that the Task Force meetings the Town Center Vision seems to be conducted in secret. Mr. Dee noted that CCH is a concern in the community.

Nancy Bradhurn Johnson
Ms. Johnson lives on 47th Ave NE. She stated that she is not appreciative of CCH as it is not in keeping with the Strategic Plan and seems to be diminishing the quality of life of the neighborhood. 

Jan Barcello
Ms. Barcello lives on 202nd St and said CCH proposals are located near her home. She said that she agreed with everyone’s previous comments.

Susanne Withers
Ms. Withers lives on 187th St. Ms. Withers said it would be helpful to provide a map of Lake Forest Park with properties that are subject to CCH proposals. Ms. Withers said she would like the City to consider the long-term effects of CCH such as who is responsible for the management of critical areas and trees. 

Julian Andersen
Mr. Andersen lives on 187th and is the president of the Lake Forest Park Stewardship Foundation. Mr. Andersen said that he is glad that there is delay but that there should be a public meeting to hear more public comments in order to take the measure of the community. He stated that CCH has fundamental problems, including certain loopholes and how conservation easements are defined.

Richard Larsen
Mr. Larsen lives on NE 178th. He said that he agreed with Mr. Hoffman’s and Mr. Andersen’s comments. Mr. Larsen noted that the process needs to be more transparent in terms of the motivation for CCH. He said that the City should have a better idea of how many landowners feel restricted in the way they can use their property and how many landowners would prefer to keep the current feeling of single-family neighborhoods.

Madelyn Runburg
Ms. Runburg lives on NE 178th St. She said that it would be helpful for those newer to the issue of CCH to have an educational briefing such as the motivation for CCH. She stated that she has looked in the code and did not see what was lacking in existing code that required or motivated the City to create CCH as an option. 

Ned Lawson
Mr. Lawson lives on NE 180th. He stated that Ordinance 1174 is being drafted to revise current CCH code. He agreed with Mr. Andersen’s comments. He said he is opposed to CCH because it seems to be a de-facto multi-family zone within single-family neighborhoods without having a transition between the two types of development. Mr. Lawson stated he would like to see an effort from the City that is more aligned with the Comprehensive Plan and works with nearby jurisdictions to holistically approach housing concerns. He also noted that having a conservation easement controlled by property owners seems to be wrought with conflict. He recommended the City look into options for third party management of conservation easements and development rights.

Kim Drews
Ms. Drews lives on NE 200th St. Ms. Drews said that she is reviewing both the current code and the revisions that were drafted for CCH. She briefed others in the room new to the CCH situation about her history as a homeowner near the Bell Cottages proposal. She stated that there are some confusing pieces of the revisions.

Levi Jette
Mr. Jette lives on NE 178th St. Mr. Jette stated that he is part of a generation that has difficulty purchasing homes, so he appreciates different pricing options but also encourages the City to address the environmental concerns. He said that he supports the CCH proposal as a way to keep housing affordable for the people who want to move here, not just the people who live here.

Chair Lebo proposed amending the agenda to move CCH to the first order of business. Cmr. Saunders moved to discuss CCH as first order of new business. Cmr. Gross seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. Chair Lebo suggested reserving 45 minutes for the PROST conversation.

New Business:	
Conservation Cluster Housing
Mr. Bennett gave a brief history of the CCH proposal including the motivation to include it initially as part of the Low Impact Development code update as well as its eventual adoption as part of the Critical Areas code. Mr. Bennett then explained the differences between the existing CCH code and the proposed draft of Ordinance 1174. 

Cmr. Saunders asked to clarify the goal of the Planning Commission for this discussion. Chair Lebo explained that the Council did not take action on the Commission’s request to extend the moratorium. Cmr. Saunders asked why the Council did not discuss it, and Mr. Bennett and Councilmember Riddle said that the motion was emailed to the Council with the Commission cc’d but that it was not placed on any meeting agenda. 

Chair Lebo asked Councilmember Riddle what would happen if a decision was not made at the next Council meeting. Councilmember Riddle clarified that Council did not respond to the Commission’s proposal because reviewing CCH is not part of the Commission’s work plan and Council did not ask Commission to look into CCH. She said that the CCH moratorium will end on May 10th. She also mentioned that the Council is scheduled to forward the Town Center Vision to the Commission for review at the Commission’s June meeting. Councilmember Riddle stated her concern that if the Commission begins to review CCH code, it might affect the timeline for review for the Town Center Vision, which is part of their work plan.

Cmr. Morris asked if the potential number of housing units would be reduced through draft Ordinance 1174. Mr. Bennett confirmed that the draft Ordinance 1174 would reduce the density of future CCH proposals. Councilmember Riddle clarified that the draft Ordinance 1174 was focused on making the existing ordinance more clear with more stringent definitions such as how the number of units can be calculated.  

Cmr. Withers asked who drafted Ordinance 1174, and Mr. Bennett clarified that he drafted the ordinance based on Councilmember comments at a previous Committee of the Whole. Cmr. Withers asked if the existing ordinance had been reviewed by the Planning Commission. Mr. Bennett answered that the existing ordinance was based on an ordinance proposal recommended by the Planning Commission in the past but Council did not adopt it. Mr. Bennett explained that Council adopted their own version as part of the Critical Areas Ordinance update. He stated that the existing code had gone through the required public hearing and SEPA process.

Mr. Bennett provided examples on the dry-erase board about how Ord. 1174 would change the CCH provisions. Mr. Bennett responded to questions raised by both Commissioners and members of the public that were present. 

Chair Lebo noted that it was 8:15 pm and Commissioners discussed how they would like to move forward. Cmr. Saunders made a motion to recommend to Council that the Conservation Cluster Housing Moratorium be extended for an additional 90 days in order to allow the Planning Commission to review and make a recommendation on the draft revisions to Conservation Cluster Housing regulations. The motion was seconded by Cmr. Gross and passed with six Commissioners voting in favor and one opposed.

Councilmember Riddle said that it would be prudent to have additional meetings and conclude discussion of CCH by the June 12th Planning Commission meeting. Chair Lebo opened discussion of alternative meeting times between this meeting and the current moratorium lift of May 10th. The date of April 24th was discussed, and the goal for the May 8th meeting would be to make a recommendation. Chair Lebo also proposed a possible third meeting of May 15th in case the moratorium is extended. 

Chair Lebo allowed the public to make additional comments that were limited to one minute in length.

Public Comment:
Madelyn Runburg
Ms. Runburg thanked the Commission for being willing to take on this task even though they were not directed to do so by Council. She emphasized that the new ordinance should focus on closing loopholes.

Julian Andersen
Mr. Andersen stated that he agreed with Ms. Runburg’s comments.

Mike Dee
Mr. Dee stated that he appreciated the Commission’s efforts to take community concerns into consideration.

Tom Hoffman
Mr. Hoffman stated that affordable housing is an important issue but the public needs more engagement opportunities regarding how to address it. He noted that the public needs to know what the timelines mean for the moratorium and the Commission’s feedback and why they are important.

Ned Lawson
Mr. Lawson stated that he agreed with Mr. Hoffman’s and Ms. Runburg’s comments. Mr. Lawson noted that Bell Homes will likely be similar in cost to normal Lake Forest Park homes, so they are not going to be affordable. He stated there are other areas in the city that would be more amenable to affordable housing. 

Kim Drews
Ms. Drews thanked the Commission for taking the time to consider this issue and noted that it is validating to see that the Commission cares about community input.

Chair Lebo stated that it is very encouraging when the public comes out and the Commission very much appreciates public comments. He noted it is a great opportunity to receive feedback and thanked the community for taking the time to visit. 

Old Business:
PROST Plan Discussion
Ms. Costa Paschke distributed handouts and stated that her goal was to receive Commissioners’ feedback on the proposed PROST plan and to provide a summary of results from last Wednesday’s public meeting. She discussed the two handouts and their findings. Commissioners asked clarifying questions which Ms. Costa Paschke answered. Commissioners suggested revisions that were documented by Ms. Costa Pachke.

Cmr. Katz requested that more direct language be added to the PROST plan referring to the potential for the SPU Reservoir to become a park similar to Maple Leaf Reservoir. There was discussion among Commissioners about possible paths forward but no decision was made.

Reports/Communications/Announcements:
Cmr. Katz reported that the draft Town Center Vision is now available online and that the public comment period started yesterday and ends April 26th. She noted that Commissioners could comment as members of the public during public comment period. She commended the consultants for threading the needle between meeting specific requirements and accommodating general public comments. Councilmember Riddle noted the Visioning Process page and that all the data from public meetings is available online. 

Agenda for Next Meeting: 
The next meeting will be on April 24th and the purpose will be to discuss CCH. Cmr. Fudge said that he will be unable to attend. 

Cmr. Withers moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Cmr. Fudge and approved unanimously.

Adjournment: 9:15 PM

APPROVED:

______________________
Jon Lebo, Chair
2

